
TBM 091311 Page 1 
 

PAHRUMP TOWN BOARD MEETING 
NYE COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 

2100 E WALT WILLIAMS DRIVE 
TUESDAY – 7:00 P.M. 

September 13, 2011 

MINUTES 

PRESENT:        
 Town Board:          

Mike Darby 
Vicky Parker        
Carolene Endersby 
Dr. Tom Waters 
Harley Kulkin 

 
Staff: 

Bill Kohbarger, Town Manager 
Seaton Curran, Attorney 
Matt Luis, Buildings & Grounds Manager  
Scott Lewis, Fire Chief 

  Samantha Carns, Executive Assistant 

1. Call to Order, Moment of Silence, and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Mike Darby called the meeting to order. 
Tom Waters led in the moment of silence and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. Discussion and Possible Decision regarding Moving the Order of or Deleting an Agenda Item(s).   
 

Harley Kulkin asked items 11, 12, and 13 be moved to items 5a, 5b, and 5c. 
 
Carolene Endersby asked items 16c and 16d be pulled from the consent agenda for further discussion. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

 
3. Announcements   

 
Bill Kohbarger, Town Manager, recognized the newest members to the Town of Pahrump staff. 
 
Fire Chief Scott Lewis announced information concerning earthquake and other emergency 
preparedness. 
 
Mrs. Endersby read the announcements. 
 
Dr. Waters said there would be a special community assessment hearing on October 12th at 2:00pm 
for Veterans in the Chamber office. 
 
Vicky Parker said the Community Center Task Force would hold a meeting on September 16th. She 
also spoke of a survey for Nye County Planning offices. 
 



TBM 091311 Page 2 
 

Phil Huff, a representative for PAVED, spoke of the Pahrump Fair and Festival, assuring the festival 
would take place with adequate security. He went on to give information concerning things which 
could be expected at the festival. 
 
Andy Alberti announce the Nye Gold Seekers would meet the following Saturday from 2:00pm at the 
Pahrump Museum. He gave information concerning their endeavors. 

 
4. Public Comment 

 
Public comment was heard. 

 
5. Advisory Board Reports from Advisory Board Chairpersons and/or Town Board Liaisons on the 

Status of Advisory Boards.   
 

Bill Garlough, Chairman of the Boundary Line Advisory Board, said they would have a financial 
report within the following month and that the Nye County Manager had informed them he would do 
what he could to be in attendance for the report. He asked all to go to the meeting because they would 
be putting an item on the Esmeralda County agenda. 
 
Bob Adams, Chairman of the Public Lands Advisory Board, said the recreational trails program 
which had previously been submitted was received by BLM and they would attend a joint meeting 
with the two BLM offices which had the land surrounding Pahrump. He added they were also 
working on developing the Bell Vista Gun Range and would have a report to bring to the Town Board 
within one or two months on whether or not it would be feasible. He also stated there were a total of 
four (4) openings on the board including alternates. 
 
Butch Clendenen, Chairman of the Community Center Task Force, said a number of items concerning 
the Task Force where on the agenda therefore status information would be held until that point. 
 
Mrs. Endersby asked if any dates or times had changed for meetings to please inform staff so all 
records could be updated. 
 

5a. Discussion and possible decision to approve Resolution 2011-11, a Resolution to Rescind 
Resolution 2011-04 and Change the Community Center Taskforce to a Town of Pahrump 
Advisory Board.   
(was item 11) 
 
Mrs. Parker gave information, stating the Taskforce had discussed their wishes to adopt 
advisory board bylaws with a 9-0 vote and, therefore, it made sense to follow through as the 
Town Board. 
 
Mrs. Endersby clarified with legal counsel that it would be alright to dissolve a taskforce and 
create a new advisory board with the same members. 
Seaton Curran, acting legal counsel, said it was up to the Town on whether or not to have the 
same members as the repealing of the Resolution would mean the former entity would be 
dissolved. 
 
Dr. Waters asked for clarification on if it would be necessary for members to re-apply. 
Mr. Curran stated members could re-apply however the Board could choose to transfer 
membership without the application process. 
 
Mrs. Parker motioned to approve and change with the current membership transferred 
from the Taskforce to the new advisory board. 
Mr. Kulkin seconded. 



TBM 091311 Page 3 
 

 
Butch Clendenen, Community Center Chairman, said not matter what the mission would be 
the same for an advisory board as it was for the Taskforce. He said they did not try to change 
the board by adopting the bylaws, they only wished to have the rules as an advisory board. He 
added if the Town Board wished for them to be an advisory board rather than a taskforce, 
they would be happy to made the change as they just wanted to get things taken care of. 
 
Public comment was heard with two (2) speaking neither for nor against the motion. 
 
Mrs. Parker stated she had a letter from the attorney which said there was no legal violation 
to vote on Taskforce items. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0. 
 

5b. Discussion and possible decision to approve Staff to place a Request for Proposal (RFP) in 
the Local and Regional Newspapers for the repair of the roof above Rooms A & B and 
separately, the Main Room of the Bob Ruud Community Center.   
(was item 12) 
 
Mrs. Parker said the Taskforce had worked with Matt Luis with specific items to be on the 
RFP. She also said that, according to the insurance company, the roof needed to be repaired 
before the interior could be repaired. 
 
Mr. Clendenen stated it was discussed and decided upon by the Taskforce to accomplish the 
requirements to get the Bob Ruud Community Center reopened. 
 
Mr. Kulkin stated going out to RFP was an attempt to gather more information in order to 
make better decisions. 
 
Dr. Waters asked if it the item was a request from the Taskforce and also asked for staff 
recommendation. 
Mr. Kohbarger stated staff did not have a recommendation at present time as the roof simply 
needed to be repaired. 
 
Mrs. Endersby asked staff that if the process was proceeded with the Board, it not impact the 
future remediation of the interior. She asked if the roof could be done separately from the 
repairs. Mr. Kohbarger stated the roof needed to be repaired prior to remediation. 
 
Mr. Kulkin motioned to request staff to place a Request for Proposal (RFP) in the local 
and regional newspapers for the repair of the roof above rooms A & B and separately, 
the main room of the Bob Ruud Community Center. 
Mrs. Parker seconded. 
 
Public comment was heard with one (1) speaking for the motion one (1) speaking neither for 
nor against it. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0. 
 

5c. Discussion and possible decision to direct Staff to open the Main Room of the Bob Ruud 
Community Center as soon as possible after adding additional HEPA filter and air-sampling 
proves it feasible.   
(was item 13) 
 



TBM 091311 Page 4 
 

Mrs. Parker said the air had been tested the previous Friday and Converse had submitted a 
report earlier that day therefore she requested it be admitted into the backup if there was no 
objection from the Board. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger provided an adequate number of copies for members of the public, Town 
Board, and staff. He then proceeded to walk through the report with all present with the 
assistance of Matt Luis, Buildings and Grounds Manager. 
 
In conclusion of the report Mr. Kohbarger stated the recommendation from the company in 
order to open the building was to completely seal off rooms ‘A’ and ‘B’ to ensure no air 
could escape into other parts of the building. 
 
Mr. Luis said the company also suggested three more air tests take place before the opening 
of the Bob Ruud Community Center at $1,500 per test. He spoke of possible legal 
repercussions should someone enter the building knowing of the mold infestation and become 
ill. Although he had confidence the rooms could be sealed off, the chance of a having court 
issues which could open the Town to liability issues was too great. 
  
Mr. Kohbarger stated staff’s recommendation was to fix the roof and completely repair and 
re-do rooms ‘A’ and ‘B’. 
He added this was a preliminary report with the full report scheduled to be received the 
following Thursday. 
 
Mrs. Parker said the type of mold which was recorded in the Bob Ruud Community Center at 
unbelievably high levels was the same she had heard normally made people sick. 
 
Mr. Kulkin asked staff state the requirements by the insurance company to re-open the 
Community Center. 
Mr. Kohbarger responded there must be three clear inspections. With the combined cost of 
$4,500 and only $600 being available from the insurance agencies, the Town would be 
responsible for $3,900. 
Mr. Kulkin said he had no doubt the rooms could be sealed off however the chance of 
liability was too high as each lawsuit required a $50,000 deductable. 
 
Dr. Waters said that in looking at all issues and possibilities it was not cost effective to the 
Town, community, or citizen health to consider opening the Bob Ruud Community Center at 
that time. 
Mr. Darby agreed. 
 
Mrs. Parker motioned not to open any rooms in the Community Center until all of the 
roof was repaired and all mold remediated and a clean bill of health was issued. 
Mr. Kulkin seconded. 
 
Mrs. Endersby asked for staff clarification on what a clean bill of health would constitute. 
Mr. Kohbarger responded it would be issued should air samplings be done in the same 
locations with results under the prescribed limits. 
 
Public comment was heard with eleven (11) speaking against the motion, and six (6) speaking 
neither for nor against. 
 
Mr. Darby called for a five minute recess. 
 
Mr. Kulkin continued, saying he was trying to look at the future of the building and suggested 
it seemed the immediate problem was for the Fall Festival and perhaps a the Town could set 



TBM 091311 Page 5 
 

up an arts and crafts tent. He stated most of the mold was in room ‘A’ which did not have 
plastic or even windows as many members of the public had been speaking of. 
 
Dr. Waters said it was not feasible to disregard all the rules. He added Beck Environmental 
would speak with the Community Center Advisory Board at their next meeting. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0. 
 
The Board made a consensus to move items 10 and 7 to 5d and 5e. 
 

5d. Discussion and Possible Decision to Request the Town Board to Sponsor the 2012 Pahrump 
Valley Community Children’s Annual Easter EGG Hunt being held on April 07, 2012 at 9:00 
a.m. at Petrack Park: B-Field & Playground Area.   
(was item 7) 
 
Mrs. Parker motioned to approve. 
Mr. Kulkin seconded. 
 
Mrs. Endersby asked if there was an involved cost to which she received the response 
there was no cost for the Town and it would mainly be for insurance responsibility. 
 
No members of the public chose to comment. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0. 
 

5e. Discussion and Possible Decision to adopt a new Agenda Behavior Warning to be placed on 
the agenda cover sheet.   
(was item 10) 
 
Mrs. Parker stated she had asked that a warning statement be drawn up by the lawyers and the 
recent warnings had caused some controversy and issues. 
 
Mrs. Endersby read the two suggested paragraphs. 
 
Mrs. Parker stated her preference was the second, Mr. Kulkin preferred the first, and Dr. 
Waters preferred the second with the change of “Under Nevada Open Meeting Law”. 
 
Mrs. Parker motioned to put a new behavior warning on the agenda being the second 
presented with the aforementioned changed. 
Dr. Waters seconded. 
 
Mr. Kulkin state the statement meant nothing if it was not followed through. 
 
Public comment was heard with three (3) speaking for the motion, and one (1) speaking 
neither for nor against it. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0. 
 

6. Discussion on Town of Pahrump Economic Development Report.   
 

Mrs. Parker said she thought Mr. Kohbarger should get further involved in Economic Development as 
there hadn’t been many results. 
 



TBM 091311 Page 6 
 

Mrs. Endersby asked Mr. Kohbarger to request Al Balloqui, Community Business & Development 
Services Manager, look at the report and outline which companies which were still active or longer 
active along with the statuses of each listed. She said the coding was fine however if there were 
companies which the Town no longer had relationships with, what needed to be done to keep that 
from happening again.  She also requested Mr. Balloqui be present at the following Town Board 
meeting. 
 
Dr. Waters said there was a company listed which seemed to have no information therefore its place 
in the report did not make sense. He also said there was a listing from over a month beforehand 
without an update. He requested current information and the status of the companies which had 
previously been on the report along with clarification. 

 
7. Discussion and Possible Decision to Request the Town Board to Sponsor the 2012 Pahrump Valley 

Community Children’s Annual Easter EGG Hunt being held on April 07, 2012 at 9:00 a.m. at Petrack 
Park: B-Field & Playground Area.   
(moved and  heard as item 5d) 
 

8. Discussion and Possible Decision on the Town Board setting a date for a Public meeting to receive 
the Final Report from Contour Entertainment.   

 
MOTION 
 
Mr. Darby said the previously proposed times were not proper, therefore he suggested the item be 
placed on the agenda. 
 
Mrs. Parker said she did not like the idea of having a special meeting during the day but would prefer 
the evening and a date needed to be set for a regular Town Board meeting. 
 
Mrs. Endersby requested the meeting start earlier on the same date as a regular meeting. She asked 
staff how long the report may take. 
Mr. Kohbarger responded he wasn’t sure how to answer the question however in a diligent way it 
could be as short as an hour however with public comment it could be four hours or longer. He 
referenced the Growponics issue as an example. 
 
Dr. Waters said he wished to have the meeting October 11th as a special meeting only if the following 
Town Board meeting was not a double meeting with many agenda items. He added a special meeting 
was the only way to address the item. 
 
Mrs. Parker stated she was not willing to sit through two meetings in one night nor for limiting public 
comment. 
 
Mr. Kulkin motioned to have a Special Town Board meeting on October 3, 2011 at 7:00pm with 
Contour Entertainment and the Vercitas Group. 
Mrs. Parker seconded. 
 
Public comment was heard with two (2) speaking neither for nor against the motion. 
 
Motion carried, 4-1, with Mr. Darby voting nay. 
 

9. Discussion and Possible Decision on Creating the 2011-2012 Town Board Goals and Performance 
Objectives.   

 
Per Mrs. Endersby’s request, Mr. Kohbarger clarified the goals would be set by the Town Board for 
Town Staff. 



TBM 091311 Page 7 
 

 
Seaton Curran, Legal Counsel, stated the Town Board goals were based off of the objectives therefore 
goals would be step two of the process, the first being to establish the Town Board objectives. 
 
Mr. Darby asked staff to run through the sheet provided in the backup. 
Mr. Kohbarger proceeded to do this. 
 
After reviewing the proposed goals and going through approval of each suggested item to the Board, 
the following goals and objectives were agreed upon: 
 

1 
 

MD #1  Groundbreaking for fair ground to include arena soccer fields, parking lot, well and septic as 
Town’s first utility which would include having to press State Legislature for waiver from UINC service 
area this would not have to be more than 60 to 80 acre possible north west side off of Ironwood 
Street and could be or should be a joint venture with Nye County as this land has been labeled Nye 
County Fair Grounds (both Butch and Gary seem to be on board with this when I have spoken with 
them). 

  

Large outdoor amphitheaters could be made out of the large ravines with some creative grading and 
conform to flood control in mind. There should be enough high ground to flatten off for a large carnival to 
set up and if construction companies will trade work for in-kind grading, then work could begin shortly after 
plans are drawn up.  The concept is much like Logandale/Clark County fairgrounds flat land and large 
steel buildings for events and auctions/show of livestock events, barn dances, etc.  Keep it simple, many 
places today host western theme events and draw large crowds, such as county fairs/rodeos.  

 

2 
 

 
MD#2  Bring back graffiti Clean-Up as a monthly volunteer day to help clean up Pahrump, use time 
in between dates to contact property owner for release to be signed, setup paint collection/donation 
maybe Home Depot, Ace or Wal*Mart will contribute. It is important that this has a very low/no impact 
cost to the Town. I would be happy to be the point person for this with you. 

3 
 

VP#1  Revise Business License Program 
         4 

 
VP#2  Complete Last Chance Park 

          5 
 

VP#3  Continue working with FAA, BLM, Fish and Wildlife, etc., on Airport 
      6 

 
VP#4  Complete 5-Year Strategic Plan 

          

                 
 

7 
 

CE#1  Rewrite and obtain passage of a new Nuisance Abatement Code working with both Town and 
County to assist in the development and enforcement of Town and County nuisance abatement 
regulations and compliance ordinances. 

8 
 

 
CE#2  Expand on the implementation of a ‘Communication Package’ for information sharing between 
the Town Board, Town Staff, and Citizens of Pahrump.  The purpose is to meet Sunshine Act laws 
and State NRS regulations. 

9 
 

 
CE#4  Place economic development as a number one priority to promote commercial business 
development, job development, light industry, etc., by working with the County Administration, County and 
State Economic Development 

 

  
Agencies, Town staff, and public/private resources.  

        

10 
 

CE#5  Create a “One Stop Shop” for incoming businesses/residents that will identify Community 
Contacts, Community Development, Workforce Development, Infrastructure Development (utilities), 
and Education Resources.  This "One Stop Shop” will be placed on the Town’s website. 

11 
 

 
CE#6  Implement a back up training program for staff.  The purpose is to designate a back up 
employee to be trained in the primary employee’s critical job duties.  Prepare manuals which include 
critical elements of each position. 

12 
 

 
CE#7  Complete Ruud Community Center roof repairs and/or construction of new Community 
Center.  

   13 
 

CE#8  Complete Field C Park lighting project.  
         14 

 
CE#9  Refurbish public restrooms at Petrack Park.   

        

15 
 

 
CE#10  Oversee, guide, and work diligently to ensure the Pahrump Airport is completed in a timely 
manner.   

  



TBM 091311 Page 8 
 

 
16 

 

 
CE#12  Complete goal established in 2006 to develop a ‘Business Enterprise Zone’ by completing 
Brownfield designation to significantly increase the probability of receiving State and Federal 
development grants. 

  

     17 
 

CE#16  Improve public relations for the Town.   
         18 

 
CE#18  Continue work toward question of Town Incorporation.  

       

19 
 

 
CE#21  Find and implement ways to help people who are disabled get to Town Board 
meetings.  

    20 
 

CE#24  Hold workshops/training as to Advisory Board roles, policies, and procedures.  
     

                 
 

21 
 

TW#1  Goal: Brief status of all ‘finalized’ Goals monthly / Give estimated completion dates / State 
“closed’ when completed. 

22 
 

 
TW#2  Goal: Ensure TM has a continual review of all items on the selected Town Manager Evaluation 
Form.   

  

23 
 

 
TW#3  Goal: Ensure Town Board members are kept current on all items on the selected Town 
Manager Evaluation Form.   

24 
 

TW#4  Goal: Review all Town Ordinances to assure practicality and currency.   
      25 

 
TW#7  Goal: Incorporate all Town Board Goals into plans of action.   

      26 
 

TW#8  Goal: Develop with TB, long- and short-term goals for the Town of Pahrump.   
     

  
  

              
 

27 
 

HK#1  Keep on top of international tourist attraction project. Assisting Contour and Vercitas when and 
where ever  

 

28 
 

 
HK#3  Compile an information packet to be distributed to Town Board members as to the status of all 
Town  

  

29 
 

 
HK#5  Name badges for office personnel.  Make current the Town Board member list/plaque on wall in 
Town office.  

  
Mrs. Parker motioned to approve and establish the 29 agreed upon goals. 
Mr. Kulkin seconded. 
 
Public comment was heard with two (2) speaking neither for nor against. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

 
10. Discussion and Possible Decision to adopt a new Agenda Behavior Warning to be placed on 

the agenda cover sheet.   
(moved and  heard as item 5e) 

 
11. Discussion and possible decision to approve Resolution 2011-11, a Resolution to Rescind 

Resolution 2011-04 and Change the Community Center Taskforce to a Town of Pahrump 
Advisory Board.   
(moved and  heard as item 5a) 

 
12. Discussion and possible decision to approve Staff to place a Request for Proposal (RFP) in 

the Local and Regional Newspapers for the repair of the roof above Rooms A & B and 
separately, the Main Room of the Bob Ruud Community Center.   
(moved and  heard as item 5b) 

 



TBM 091311 Page 9 
 

13. Discussion and possible decision to direct Staff to open the Main Room of the Bob Ruud 
Community Center as soon as possible after adding additional HEPA filter and air-sampling 
proves it feasible.   
(moved and  heard as item 5c) 

 
14. Discussion and possible decision to create an Events Advisory Board to actively create and/or 

pursue groups/events and bring those groups/events to the Town of Pahrump.   
 

Mr. Kulkin said the Tourism Board had been doing a great job getting the word out about 
Pahrump however generally people want to visit places to participate in an event. He said 
after speaking with many people it sounded as though others thought an Events Advisory 
Board would be a good idea and should be attempted to see if it worked in bringing more 
tourists to Pahrump. 
 
Mrs. Parker said on face it sounded like a good idea however they desperately wanted 
someone to take over the Fall Festival because it took so much staff time and funds. She 
added that traveling around the state there were towns who had events throughout the year 
however they also employed a Event Director full time, which the Town of Pahrump could 
not afford to do. 
 
Mrs. Endersby said as the Town had the PTCC and the Chamber of Commerce which both 
used the term “convention” in their description there would normally be a group in the same 
category to coordinate events. She asked the PTCC to look at their name and mission 
statement to see if they did not have a desire to be involved in event planning. She said she 
felt Mr. Kulkin’s concerns were legitimate however community events normally were done 
by employees rather than volunteers. 
 
Dr. Waters and Mr. Darby each agreed with Mrs. Parker and Mrs. Endersby. 
 
Mr. Kulkin stated the PTCC told him they had the Convention Counsel added to their title for 
grant purposes and had no wish to organize events. 
 
Mr. Kulkin motioned to create an events advisory board. 
Dr. Waters seconded for the interest of public comment. 
 
Mrs. Endersby asked the issue be looked at by the Chamber of Commerce and PTCC. 
Mr. Kulkin said there was nothing prohibiting an entity from talking with the proposed board. 
 
Public comment was heard with two (2) speaking for the motion, two (2) speaking against it, 
and two (2) speaking neither for nor against it. 
 
Mr. Kulkin said it sounded as though thoughts were too big concerning the proposed board 
and people were making a lot of assumptions. He emphasized the advisory board would be to 
see if event planning could be accomplished. 
 
Motion failed, 2-3, with Mrs. Parker, Mrs. Endersby, and Dr. Waters voting nay. 

 
15. Discussion and possible decision to create a Town Board and Advisory Board Workshop.  

The Workshop to be held January 2012 in the Town of Pahrump and meet Open Meeting 
Law requirements, date/time/place to be announced.   

 
Mrs. Endersby said she submitted the item originally to take the place of the retreat however 
she could not do so as she had originally voted against the retreat. She said she would like to 
do this workshop especially considered it had just been made a goal/objective. 



TBM 091311 Page 10 
 

 
Dr. Waters said he thought it was a good idea. 
Mr. Kulkin agreed. 
 
Mrs. Parker said previous Town Boards had a joint meeting between the Town Board and all 
advisory boards where all were able to explain in detail what they were working on. 
 
Mrs. Endersby motioned to create a Town Board and Advisory Board Workshop as 
specified. 
Dr. Waters seconded. 
 
Public comment was heard with one (1) speaking neither for nor against. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

 
16. Discussion and Possible Decision Consent agenda items:   

a. Action – Approval of Town Vouchers. 
b. Action – Approval of Town Board Minutes for August 23, 2011. 

 
Mrs. Endersby motioned to approve items ‘a’ and ‘b’ with the correction of dates for the 
Community Assessment sessions. 
Motion died due to lack of a second. 
 
Mrs. Parker motioned to approve items ‘a’ and ‘b’ with the aforementioned changes. 
Dr. Waters seconded. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0. 
 

c. Action – Approval to Accept Mr. Frank Maurizio to the Community Center Taskforce. 
 
Mrs. Parker asked to hear from the Community Center Advisory Board chair on the acceptance 
of Mr. Maurizio. 
 
Mr. Clendenen clarified the recommendation was Mr. Maurizio be the first alternate which 
passed with an 8-0 vote. 
 
Mrs. Endersby expressed concerns because of comments previously made and wanted to make 
sure the Board comfortable and without issues. 
Mr. Clendenen said he did not believe there would be many issues with Mr. Maurizio serving on 
the Community Center Advisory Board and he would be more of an asset to them. 
 
Mrs. Endersby motioned to approve. 
Dr. waters seconded. 
 
Mr. Kulkin stated in his opinion Mr. Maurizio had entered outside of the realm of simply 
disagreeing and he felt it would create a more disruptive atmosphere as the way Mr. Maurizio 
had gone about things was incorrect therefore he could not support his placement on the 
Community Center Advisory Board. 
 
Dr. Waters said when a Chair makes a recommendation for membership it should be supported 
regardless of how the Town Board felt. 
 
Mr. Darby stated he would set his personal opinions aside. 
 



TBM 091311 Page 11 
 

Public comment as heard with three (3) speaking for the motion. 
 
Mrs. Parker said she had been threatened by Mr. Maurizio twice previously regarding the 
Community Center Advisory Board however she was relying on Mr. Clendenen to see 
appropriate behavior was used. 
 
Mr. Kulkin said he was not voting based on personal feelings, but on what would be best for the 
Town. 
 
Motion carried, 4-1, with Mr. Kulkin voting nay. 
 

d. Action – Approval to Accept the Resignation of Mr. George Sausman from the Pahrump Nuclear 
Waste and Environmental Advisory Board. 
 
Mrs. Endersby said she had pulled the item because she was astonished and saddened to see Mr. 
Sausman submit his resignation. She asked for feedback as to why he’d chosen to resign whether 
personal or because of issues on the advisory board. 
Mrs. Parker concurred as she considered him a great member of the board. 
 
Dr. Waters stated that, as the liaison, he was told the resignation was primarily due to personal 
reasons along with a few others. 
 
Dr. Waters motioned to accept. 
Mrs. Parker seconded. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

 
17. Future Meetings/Workshops: Date, Time and Location   

a. Town Board Retreat: October 4, 2011 Noon to 8:00 p.m. Mesquite, NV. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger stated he had emailed all Town Board members with information concerning the 
two individuals who agreed to facilitate the Town Board retreat, both of which had over 25 years 
experience. He stated the facilitators asked for input on questions for the agenda as well as 
requests for how the meeting should run. 
 
Mr. Kulkin inquired as to the date of reservations for the retreat. 
Mr. Kohbarger responded check in would be at 2:00pm on October 4, to which Mrs. Parker 
added the hotel usually had rooms ready before hand available for early check in per guest 
request. 

 
18. Staff’s Comments   

 
Mr. Kohbarger clarified a statement made earlier in the evening by Mr. DeCanio stating the meeting 
with Pool Pact was attended via teleconference. 

 
19. Town Board Member’s Comments   

 
Mrs. Parker asked as to the status of a request from a citizen that a portable microphone be available 
during meetings for public comment. 
Mr. Kohbarger said the request to County had been put in eight to ten weeks beforehand. 
 
Mr. Kulkin referenced a comment made by Mr. Sam Jones that his hands were tied stating that all of 
their hands were tied and the Community Center Advisory Board had helped the Town Board move 
forward more quickly than they would have without their advise and work. 



TBM 091311 Page 12 
 

 
Mrs. Endersby mentioned the Redistricting Committee meeting and the Master Plan Revision 
Committee. 
 
Dr. Waters said he wanted to make sure the members who were resigning were receiving certificates 
of Appreciation, which staff confirmed. 
He asked for consideration that perhaps the report which would be presented at the Community 
Center Advisory Board meeting be placed on the following Town Board meeting agenda. 

 
20. Adjournment  

 
Mr. Darby adjourned the meeting at 12:13am. 

 


